Havant

. BOROUGH COUNCIL

HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL
PUBLIC SERVICE PLAZA
CIVIC CENTRE ROAD
HAVANT

HAMPSHIRE P09 2AX

Telephone: 023 9244 6019
www.havant.gov.uk

Lo
WK

Wmchester

City Coundil

WINCHESTER CITY COUNCIL
CITY OFFICES,

COLEBROOK STREET,
WINCHESTER,

HAMPSHIRE SO23 9LJ

Telephone: 01962 840222
www.winchester.gov.uk

JOINT WEST OF WATERLOOVILLE MAJOR
DEVELOPMENT AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE AGENDA

Membership: Councillor Ruffell (Chairman) (WCC)
Councillor Buckley (Vice-Chairman) (HBC)
Councillors (WCC) Councillors (HBC)
Clear, Read, Evans and McLean Keast, Howard and Patrick
Meeting: Joint West of Waterlooville Major Development Area Planning
Committee
Date: Wednesday 29 August 2018
Time: 3.00 pm
Venue: Hollybank Room, Public Service Plaza, Civic Centre Road,

Havant, Hants PO9 2AX

The business to be transacted is set out below:

Nick Leach
Monitoring Officer

20 August 2018

Contact Officer:  Nicholas Rogers 023 9244 6233
Email: nicholas.rogers@havant.gov.uk

Page


http://www.easthants.gov.uk/

Apologies and Deputy Members

To record the names of apologies given and Deputy Members who
are attending the meeting in place of appointed Members.

Declarations of Interests

To receive any disclosure of interests from members and officers in
matters to be discussed

Minutes 1-8

To approve the minutes of the Joint West of Waterlooville Major
Development Planning Committee held on 27 February 2018.

Chairman's Announcements

The Chairman to report on any matters relevant to the Committee.

17/02957/REM - Berewood Phase 9B, West Of Marrelsmoor 9-24
Avenue, Waterlooville, Hampshire

Proposal: Berewood Phase 9b. Reserved Matters Application
comprising 75 residential dwellings, associated amenity
space, access, garages, parking, internal roads,
pathways and associated landscaping. (Matters of
layout, appearance, access, landscape and scale
pursuant to application ref: 10/02862/OUT). Discharge
of conditions 3, 6, (i) a) b) d) f) h) i) j) k) I) m) n), 11, 18
(AFFECTS THE SETTING OF A PUBLIC RIGHT OF
WAY).

Parish: Southwick and Widley Parish and Wickham ward.

Associated Documents: https://tinyurl.com/y8vn67yv

il


https://tinyurl.com/y8vn67yv

GENERAL INFORMATION

IF YOU WOULD LIKE A VERSION OF THIS AGENDA, OR
ANY OF ITS REPORTS, IN LARGE PRINT, BRAILLE,
AUDIO OR IN ANOTHER LANGUAGE PLEASE CONTACT
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES ON 023 9244 6231

Internet

This agenda and its accompanying reports can also be found on the Havant
Borough Council’s website: www.havant.gov.uk and Winchester City Council’s
website www.winchester.gov.uk/meetings . Would you please note that
committee reports are subject to changes and you are recommended to
regularly check the website and to contact Nicholas Rogers (tel no: 023 9244
6233) on the afternoon prior to the meeting for details of any amendments
issued.

Public Attendance and Participation

Members of the public are welcome to attend the Public Service Plaza and
observe the meetings. If you wish to address the Committee on a matter
included in the agenda, you are required to make a request in writing (an
email is acceptable) to the Democratic Services Team. A request must be
received by 4pm on Friday, 24 August 2018 . Requests received after this
time and date will not be accepted

In all cases, the request must briefly specify the subject on which you wish to
speak and whether you wish to support or speak against the matter to be
discussed. Requests to make a deputation to the Committee may be sent:

By Email to: nicholas.rogers@havant.gov.uk or DemocraticServices@havant.gov.uk

By Post to :

Democratic Services Officer
Havant Borough Council
Public Service Plaza

Civic Centre Road

Havant, Hants P09 2AX

Delivered at:
Havant Borough Council
Public Service Plaza
Civic Centre Road
Havant, Hants P09 2AX

marked for the Attention of the “Democratic Services Team”

il


http://www.havant.gov.uk/
http://www.winchester.gov.uk/meetings
mailto:DemocraticServices@havant.gov.uk

Who To Contact If You Wish To Know The Outcome Of A Decision

If you wish to know the outcome of a particular item please contact the
Contact Officer (contact details are on page i of the agenda)

Disabled Access

The Public Service Plaza has full access and facilities for the disabled.

Emergency Procedure

Please ensure that you are familiar with the location of all emergency exits
which are clearly marked. In the unlikely event of an emergency an alarm will
sound.

PLEASE EVACUATE THE BUILDING IMMEDIATELY.
DO NOT RE-ENTER THE BUILDING UNTIL AUTHORISED TO DO SO
No Smoking Policy

The Public Service Plaza operates a strict No Smoking policy in all of its
offices, corridors, meeting rooms and toilets.

Parking

Pay and display car parking is available in the Leisure Centre car park
opposite the Civic Offices as shown on the attached plan.

v



1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

2.1

2.2

CONSTITUTION AND TERMS OF REFERENCE OF WEST OF
WATERLOOVILLE MDA JOINT PLANNING COMMITTEE

At the meeting of Winchester City Council held on 2 April 2014, and Havant
Borough Council held on 27 March 2014, the following Constitution and Terms

of Reference were agreed for the Joint Planning Committee:

Establishment of the Joint Committee

There shall be constituted under the provisions of Section 101(5) and Section

102 of the Local Government Act 1972 a Joint Committee to be known as the

“West of Waterlooville Major Development Area Joint Planning Committee”.

The Joint Committee is established by Havant Borough Council and
Winchester City Council.

The area within which the Joint Committee is to exercise its authority is the
West of Waterlooville Major Development Area, as shown on the plan
attached as Appendix A.

This Constitution sets out how the Joint Committee will operate and how
decisions are made.

Functions Delegated to the Joint Committee

Subject to the remaining provisions of this Clause 2, the following functions
shall be delegated to the Joint Committee insofar as they relate to matters
within the West of Waterlooville Major Development Area:

Power to determine applications for planning permission (including
applications for reserved matters).

Power to determine applications to develop land without compliance with
conditions previously attached.

Power to grant planning permission for development already carried out.

Duties relating to the making of determinations of planning applications.

Power to determine applications for planning permission made by a local
authority, alone or jointly with another person.

Power to enter into agreement regulating development or use of land.

The delegation includes all the powers necessary to facilitate, or otherwise
incidental or conducive to, the discharge of the functions of the Joint
Committee.

The following functions shall be reserved to the appointing Authorities and
shall not be within the powers of the Joint Committee:-




23

Power to decline to determine application for planning permission.

Power to make determinations, give approvals and agree certain other
matters relating to the exercise of permitted development rights.

Power to issue a certificate of existing or proposed lawful use or
development.

Power to serve a completion notice.

Power to grant consent for the display of advertisements.

Power to authorise entry onto land.

Power to require the discontinuance of a use of land.

Power to serve a planning contravention notice, breach of condition notice
or stop notice.

Power to issue a temporary stop notice

Power to issue an enforcement notice.

Power to apply for an injunction restraining a breach of planning control.

Power to determine applications for hazardous substances consent, and
related powers.

Duty to determine conditions to which old mining permissions, relevant
planning permissions relating to dormant sites or active Phase | or |l sites,
or mineral permissions relating to mining sites, as the case may be, are to
be subject.

Power to require proper maintenance of land.

Power to determine application for listed building consent, and related
powers.

Duties relating to applications for listed building.

Power to serve a building preservation notice, and related powers.

Power to issue listed building enforcement notices.

Powers to acquire a listed building in need of repair and to serve a repairs
notice.

Power to apply for an injunction in relation to a listed building.

Power to execute urgent works.

Power to determine applications to fell or carry out works to trees that are

the subject of a Tree Preservation Order

The Joint Committee shall not have authority to take any decision which is
contrary to or not wholly in accordance with the budget approved by Havant
Borough Council or Winchester City Council for the Joint Committee or is
contrary to an approved policy or strategy of either of the authorities.

Vi




24

3.1

3.2

4.1

5.1

5.2

6.1

6.2

6.3

Save as expressly provided, the functions delegated to the Joint Committee
shall not affect the schemes of delegations for officers for determining
planning applications adopted by Winchester City Council and Havant
Borough Council.

Membership and Appointment of the Joint Committee

The Joint Committee shall comprise nine Members, being five Members from
Winchester City Council and four from Havant Borough Council. Each
appointing Authority shall, unless there are overriding reasons to the contrary,
appoint to the Joint Committee the Chairman of their committee responsible
for planning matters.

Each Authority may appoint deputies to act for the appointed Members of the
Joint Committee. Where the appointed Member is unable to attend a meeting
of the Joint Committee, their Deputy may attend and carry out their
responsibilities, including voting in their absence.

Quorum
The quorum for a meeting of the Joint Committee shall be four Members, with

at least one Member from each Authority.

Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Joint Committee

The Chairman of the Joint Committee shall be the Chairman of the Planning
Development Control Committee of Winchester City Council.

The Vice-Chairman of the Joint Committee shall be the Chairman of the
Development Management Control Committee of Havant Borough Council.

Secretary to the Joint Committee

The Joint Committee shall be supported by the Secretary to the Joint
Committee.

The Secretary of the Joint Committee shall be an officer of one of the
appointing Authorities, appointed by the Joint Committee for this purpose.

The functions of the Secretary of the Joint Committee shall be:
a) To maintain a record of membership of the Joint Committee;
b) To summon meetings of the Joint Committee;

c) To prepare and send out the agenda for meetings of the Joint
Committee in consultation with the Chairman and the Vice Chairman of
the Joint Committee;

d) To keep a record of the proceedings of the Joint Committee;

vii



7.1

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

9.1

e) To take such administrative action as may be necessary to give effect
to decisions of the Joint Committee;

Convening of Meetings of the Joint Committee

Meetings of the Joint Committee shall be held at such times, dates and places
as may be notified to the members of the Joint Committee by the Secretary to
the Joint Committee.

Procedure at Meetings of the Joint Committee

The Joint Committee shall, unless the member of the Joint Committee
presiding at a meeting or the Joint Committee determines otherwise, conduct
its business in accordance with the Constitution of Winchester City Council,
except in so far as may be specified to the contrary in this Constitution.

The Chairman of the Joint Committee, or in his/her absence the Vice
Chairman of the Joint Committee, or in his/her absence the member of the
Joint Committee elected for this purpose, shall preside at any meeting of the
Joint Committee.

Subject to Clause 8.4, decisions shall be decided by a majority of the votes of
the members present and voting.

The chairman shall have a second or casting vote.

Where, immediately following the taking of a decision, at least two members
of the Joint Committee indicate that the decision should be referred back and
made by the relevant local planning authority(ies) for the application, the
matter shall stand referred to the appropriate local planning authorities for
determination.

Amendment of this Constitution

This constitution can only be amended by resolution of all appointing

viii



——
WateﬂoDvma

e

Juncln <ZZZ>

PETERSFIFLD RoAR

Junction
No.5

Havant Leisure
Centre

~ s

e S . >
¢ ShortStay 7 ¢ Public /

/ «c,:/\g?ho;s ///,\ CarPark /

Havant | = o=
BOROUGH COUNCIL ’ a ’ '
Civic Offices, Havant, Hants, PO9 2AX

Station

1 Barriers/
i Card Machines

X



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 3
1
JOINT WEST OF WATERLOOVILLE MAJOR DEVELOPMENT AREA
PLANNING COMMITTEE
27 February 2018

HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL

At a meeting of the Joint West of Waterlooville Major Development Area Planning
Committee held on 27 February 2018

Present

Ruffell (Chairman), Hughes, Patrick, Read, Evans, Tait, Izard (Standing Deputy),
Guest (Standing Deputy) and Quantrill (Standing Deputy)

6  Apologies and Deputy Members

Apologies received from ClIr Clear, Clir Keast and Clir Buckley with Clir 1zzard,
Guest and Quantrill as deputies.

7 Declarations of Interests

There were no delcarations of interest from members present relating to
matters on the agenda.

8 Minutes

RESOLVED that the Minutes of the last meeting of the Joint West Waterlooville
Major Development Area Planning Committee held on the 9t January 2017 be
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

9 17/01772/REM - Phase 13A Development Land To The West Of Newlands
Avenue Waterlooville Hampshire

Proposal: Berewood Phase 13a: Reserved Matters Application comprising
73 residential dwellings, associated amenity space, access,
garages, parking, internal roads, pathways and associated
landscaping. (Matters of layout, appearance, access, landscape
and scale pursuant to application ref:10/02862/OUT). Discharge
of conditions 3, 6(ii) a) b), c), d), e), f), h), i), j), k) I) m) n), 14 and
18.

Parish: Southwick and Widley Parish and Southwick and Wickham Ward.
The committee considered the written report from the Head of Planning and the
recommendation to grant permission.

Following questions from the Committee, officers advised the following:

Page 1



2

JOINT WEST OF WATERLOOVILLE MAJOR DEVELOPMENT AREA
PLANNING COMMITTEE

27 February 2018

e The s106 agreement would cover issues relating to infrastructure
provisions for the local area. A briefing note on infrastructure issues
would be delivered at the next Forum meeting to address these
concerns.

¢ It was in the officers’ opinion that the proposal made best use of
space available on the development site and the density of the
proposal was acceptable.

e The open space provisions contained within the proposal were
acceptable and allowed the development to remain viable.

e The Affordable housing contributions were acceptable with a
sympathetic spread across the development site.

¢ A balanced negotiation had taken place regarding the design and
layout of the proposal, allowing for the development to be in line with
the Design Code whilst remaining marketable for the developer.

¢ All open green spaces would be maintained by a private
management company and there would be some time before this
responsibility was moved to a Parish Council.

e |t was the intention for the garages to be used to house vehicles
when not in use and any material changes of use to garages would
require planning consent. Suitably worded conditions were included
in the Officer's recommendation to address communal parking
areas.

The committee was then addressed by the following deputees:

1. Ms Amy Ashby, who objected to the Officer's recommendation for the
following reasons:

a. The proposal sought to remove a significant amount of open
space adjacent to an already existing development, which
would have a significant detrimental effect on local residents.

b. There was insufficient buffer space between this development
and adjacent developments. Buffer space was important as it
maintained social and ecological well being.

c. The proposal would have a negative impact on local wildlife by
way of it's layout and design.

2. ClIr J Watson, who objected to the Officer's recommendation for the
following reasons:

a. There was a significant number of public objections to the
application.
PP Page 2



Joint West of Waterlooville Major Development Area Planning Committee (27.2.18)

b.

The proposal was a significant departure from the originally
submitted plans by way of its density, layout and design.

The density of the proposal raised significant concerns over
future developments and higher density proposals.

. The northern aspect of the development site was originally

proposed as green open space. This was now proposed to be
developed.

3. Clir Cutler, who objected to the Officer's recommendation for the
following reasons:

a.

b.

C.

Both Parish and Ward Councillors had worked hard to develop
a sense of community for the new developments in the local
area. Disregarding the objections of these communities to the
proposal would undermine this work.

The proposal had an inappropriate density, leading to
excessive pressure placed upon infrastructure.

The proposal was a departure from the original plans, leading
to creeping intensification.

4. Ms Bryony Stala and Mr David Lee, who supported the Officer's
recommendation for the following reasons:

a.

The proposal had undergone several design iterations in order
to make best use of the developable area.

The proposal featured appropriate landscaping, open space
and green spaces, while still being able to deliver a
reasonable number of dwellings.

The proposal was a high quality development which had a
different character and design to other developments, creating
a sense of variety and difference.

. The density of the development was due to a higher number of

deliverable houses, whilst also being inline with outline
consent. It was anticipated that other sites would not be able
to deliver a higher number of dwellings and therefore this
proposal would assist in accommodating the drop in
deliverable houses arising from other proposals.

In response to questions from the committee, the deputees advised that:

The total number of dwellings to be delivered over phase 13A and

13B was unknown.

The proposal allowed for enough green open space while still

delivering a higher R@ag§ JF houses.



4
JOINT WEST OF WATERLOOVILLE MAJOR DEVELOPMENT AREA
PLANNING COMMITTEE

27 February 2018

In response to questions from the committee, Officers further advised the
following:

e The proposal made best use of the space available.

e The green space provision was appropriate for the size of the
development.

¢ Detail of the refuse strategy and how waste would be collected.

The committee discussed the application in detail together with the views raised
by the deputees. Concern was expressed that the layout affordable housing
was inappropriate as some dwellings were too far from communal green open
space. However the majority of the Committee felt that the layout, character
and design of the proposal was acceptable and that it would make a significant
contribution to meeting the housing need for both authorities. It was therefore

RESOLVED that the Head of Planning Services for Winchester City Council be
authorised to grant permission for Application 17/017772/REM, subject to the
following conditions:

01 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with
the following approved plans, documents and e mails.
Mayer Brown Drawings:
General Arrangement RHWVILLE_P13A/GA/01
Drainage layout RHWVILLE_P13A/DR/01 Sheet 1 of 2
Drainage layout RHWVILLE_P13A/DR/02 Sheet 2 of 2
SW Drainage Longsection RHWVILLE_P13A/DR/03 Sheet 1 of 3
SW Drainage Longsection RHWVILLE_P13A/DR/04 Sheet 2 of 3
SW Drainage Longsection RHWVILLE_P13A/DR/05 Sheet 3 of 3
FW Drainage Longsection RHWVILLE_P13A/DR/06 Sheet 1 of 3
FW Drainage Longsection RHWVILLE_P13A/DR/07 Sheet 2 of 3
FW Drainage Longsection RHWVILLE_P13A/DR/08 Sheet 3 of 3
Large Refuse Vehicle Tracking RHWVILLE_P13A/VT/01 Rev A Sheet 1 of 2
Large Refuse Vehicle Tracking RHWVILLE_P13A/VT/01 Rev A Sheet 2 of 2
Road Names, Chainages, Levels & Structures RHWVILLE_P13A/EL/01 Sheet
1 of 2
Road Names, Chainages, Levels & Structures RHWVILLE_P13A/EL/02 Sheet
2 of 2
Extent of Adoptable Highway RHWVILLE_P13A/LG/01
Extent of Permeable Paving RHWVILLE_P13A/RD/30
Longitudinal Sections RHWVILLE_P13A/RD/50 Sheet 1 of 4
Longitudinal Sections RHWVILLE_P13A/RD/51 Sheet 2 of 4
Longitudinal Sections RHWVILLE_P13A/RD/52 Sheet 3 of 4
Longitudinal Sections RHWVILLE_P13A/RD/53 Sheet 4 of 4
Cross Sections RHWVILLE_P13A/RD/60 Sheet 1 of 4
Cross Sections RHWVILLE_P13A/RD/60 Sheet 2 of 4
Cross Sections RHWVILLE _P13A/RD/60 Sheet 3 of 4
Cross Sections RHWVILLE_P13A/RD/60 Sheet 4 of 4
Street Lighting RHWVILLE_P13A/RD/20
Page 4



Joint West of Waterlooville Major Development Area Planning Committee (27.2.18)

Carlton Design Partnership Plans:

Planning Application Boundary Plan 170216/PABP Rev A
Site Location Plan 170216/SL/LP Rev A

Phase 13a Boundary treatment plan170216/SL/BTP rev N
Phase 13a Coloured site layout 170216/SLC rev D
Phase 13a Coloured street scenes 170216/SSC rev D
Phase 13a Design and Access Statement February 2018
Phase 13a Delivery Plan 170216/SL/DP rev A

Phase 13a Chimney Details 170216/DET/CH

Phase 13a Materials Plan 170216/SL/MP rev N

Phase 13a Parking Plan 170216/SL/PP Rev F

Phase 13a Planning layout 170216/SL/PD rev V

Phase 13a Refuse Strategy 170216/SL/RSP rev F

Phase 13a Site density plan 170216/SD/PD rev A

Phase 13a Storey Heights Plan 170216/SL/SHP rev F
Phase 13a Tenure Plan 170216/SL/TP rev F

Carlton Design Partnership Housetypes:

Tavy Timber board - 170216/HT/TAVY_LB/EL Rev D
Tavy brick - 170216/HT/TAVY/EL Rev F

Tavy Floor plans - 170216/HT/TAVY/FP Rev F

Tavy 3 elevations - 170216/HT/TT3/EL Rev H

Tavy 3 floor plans - 170216/HT/TT3/FP Rev E

Dart Elevations - 170216/HT/DART/EL Rev D

Dart Floor plans - 170216/HT/DART/FP Rev C

Block A elevations - 170216/HT/BLA/EL Rev G

Block A floor plans - 170216/HT/BLA/FP Rev C

Block B elevations - 170216/HT/BLB/EL Rev G

Block B floor plans - 170216/HT/BLB/FP Rev B
Cambridge elevations - 170216/HT/CAMB/EL2 Rev C
Cambridge elevations (straight edge board) - 170216/HT/CAMB/EL2 Rev C
Cambridge floor plans - 170216/HT/CAMB/FP Rev B
Oxford Lifestyle elevations - 170216/HT/OX-L/EL Rev C
Oxford Lifestyle floor plans - 170216/HT/OX-L/FP Rev B
Lemington elevations - 170216/HT/LEAM/EL Rev C
Lemington floor plans - 170216/HT/LEAM/FP Rev C
Shaftesbury straight edge board Elevations - 170216/HT/SHAF-REN/EL Rev C
Shaftesbury brick - 170216/HT/shaf-br/EL2 Rev C
Shaftesbury Floor plan - 170216/HT/shaf/FP Rev B
Harrogate elevations - 170216/HT/HARR/EL Rev C
Harrogate floor plans - 170216/HT/HARR/FP Rev B
Henley elevations - 170216/HT/HENL/EL - Rev C
Henley Floor plans - 170216/HT/HENL/FP

Sunningdale elevations - 170216/SUNN/EL Rev D
Sunningdale Floor plans - 170216/HT/SUNN/FP Rev B
Ancillary Buildings:

Single garage 1 - 170316/SG1/EP rev B

Double garage 12 - 170316/DG12/EP Rev A

Double garage 10 - 170316/DG10/EP Rev B

Bin and Cycle stores - 170316/BCS/EP Rev A

Garages Sheds - 170316/SH/EPPage 5



6

JOINT WEST OF WATERLOOVILLE MAJOR DEVELOPMENT AREA
PLANNING COMMITTEE

27 February 2018

Redrow Drawings:

Cladding Plan and Section Detail - Redrow, Detail-001 Rev A

Flat Canopy Details F-SD0510

Canopy Details & Sizes FSD0511

45 Pitch Roof Caopy with Wayne Edge Boarding Small F-SD0512 Rev 1 of 3
45 Pitch Roof Caopy with Wayne Edge Boarding Small F-SD0512 Rev 2 of 3
45 Pitch Roof Caopy with Wayne Edge Boarding Small F-SD0512 Rev 3 of 3
Roof Abutment Details - Lean to and mono pitch F-SD0515

Other Documents:

Design Code Compliance Checklist

Window Brochure - Liniar Flush Window

Bollard specification - Broxap BX17 Pointed

Biodiversity By Design - Berewood Phase 13A Residential Reserved Matter
Applicaiton: Ecological Appraisal 03 July 2017 Rev 1.0

Savills Planning Statement Update Berewood Phase 13A V.2 October 2017
E-mail from L Garland to R Smith 23/10/2017 addressing ecological queries
E-mail from B Stala to K Stickland 07/02/2018 responding to request for further
information

Savills Cover Letter - 8 February 2018, confirming description and updated plan
submission

E-mail from D Lee to K Stickland 9/02/2018 confirming cladding colour and
treatment

Allen Pyke Landscape Plans;

Landscape Design & Access, January 2018 2745-DAS-01E
Landscape Masterplan 2745-LA-01 Rev P4

Planting Plan 2745-PP-01 Rev P2 Sheet 1 of 5

Planting Plan 2745-PP-02 Rev P2 Sheet 2 of 5

Planting Plan 2745-PP-03 Rev P2 Sheet 3 of 5

Planting Plan 2745-PP-04 Rev P2 Sheet 4 of 5

Planting Plan 2745-PP-05 Rev P2 Sheet 5 of 5

01 Reason: In the interests of clarity and to ensure that the development is
carried out in a satisfactory manner.

02 The parking area including the garage shall be provided in accordance with
the approved plans before the dwelling is first occupied and thereafter
permanently retained and used only for the purpose of accommodating private
motor vehicles or other storage purposes incidental to the use of the dwelling
house as a residence.

02 Reason: To ensure the permanent availability of parking for the property.
03 The unallocated and visitor car parking spaces shown on the submitted
drawing number 170216/SL/PP Revision F shall be retained and made

available for parking purposes at all times to all residents and visitors to the
development with no physical or legal restriction on who may use such spaces.

Page 6



Joint West of Waterlooville Major Development Area Planning Committee (27.2.18)

03 Reason: To ensure that adequate parking spaces are retained for the
development (in accordance with Winchester City Council's Supplementary
Planning Document Residential Parking Standards December 2009) in the
interests of highway safety.

04 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted

Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re enacting
that order with or without modification) no development permitted by Part 1
Class A of Schedule 2 in respect of plots 1, 3, 5, 24, 27, 29, 40, 43, 47, 49, 50,
53, 65 and 71 (as shown on approved plan Site Layout Site Density
170216/SD/PD Revision A) shall be carried out without the prior written consent
of the Local Planning Authority.

04 Reason: To protect the amenities of the locality and to maintain a good
quality environment because these plots are in prominent positions in the street
scene or adjacent to the areas of publically accessible open space.

05 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted

Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re enacting
that order with or without modification) no development permitted by Part 1
Classes B, C and D of Schedule 2 shall be carried out without the prior written
consent of the Local Planning Authority.

05 Reason: To protect the amenities of the locality and to maintain a good
quality environment.

06 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted

Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re enacting
that order with or without modification) no development permitted by Part 2
Class A of Schedule 2 shall be carried out without the prior written consent of
the Local Planning Authority.

06 Reason: To protect the amenities of the locality and to maintain a good
quality environment.

Informatives:

01.  In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the NPPF Winchester
City Council (WCC) take a positive and proactive approach to development
proposals focused on solutions. WCC work with applicants/agents in a positive
and proactive manner by;

- offering a pre-application advice service and,

- updating applicants/agents of any issues that may arise in the processing of
their application and where possible suggesting solutions.

Page 7



8

JOINT WEST OF WATERLOOVILLE MAJOR DEVELOPMENT AREA
PLANNING COMMITTEE

27 February 2018

In this instance the applicant was updated of any issues after the initial site
visit.

02. This permission is granted for the following reasons:

The development is in accordance with the Policies and Proposals of the
Development Plan set out below, and other material considerations do not have
sufficient weight to justify a refusal of the application. In accordance with
Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, planning
permission should therefore be granted.

03. The Local Planning Authority has taken account of the following
development plan policies and proposals:-

Winchester District Local Plan Part 1 — Joint Core Strateqgy:
SH2 — Strategic Housing Allocation — West of Waterlooville.

Winchester Local Plan Part 2 — Development Management and Site Allocations.
As this is a reserved matters application it does not require assessment against these
policies which were adopted after the outline consent had been granted.

04.  All building works including demolition, construction and machinery or
plant operation should only be carried out between the hours of 0800 and 1800
hrs Monday to Friday and 0800 and 1300 hrs Saturday and at no time on
Sundays or recognised public holidays. Where allegations of noise from such
works are substantiated by the Environmental Protection Team, a Notice
limiting the hours of operation under The Control of Pollution Act 1974 may be
served.

05.  During Construction, no materials should be burnt on site. Where
allegations of statutory nuisance are substantiated by the Environmental
Protection Team, an Abatement Notice may be served under The
Environmental Protection Act 1990. The applicant is reminded that the emission
of dark smoke through the burning of materials is a direct offence under The
Clean Air Act 1993.

The meeting commenced at 10.00 am and concluded at 11.30 am

Page 8



Case No:
Proposal Description:

Address:

Parish, or Ward if within
Winchester City:
Applicants Name:

Case Officer:

Date Valid:

Site Factors:

Recommendation:

P;huse-?t

rq

Case No: 17/02957/REM

Agenda ltem 5

17/02957/REM

Berewood Phase 9b. Reserved Matters Application comprising
75 residential dwellings, associated amenity space, access,
garages, parking, internal roads, pathways and associated
landscaping. (Matters of layout, appearance, access, landscape
and scale pursuant to application ref: 10/02862/OUT).
Discharge of conditions 3, 6, (i) a) b) d) f) h) i) j) k) [) m) n), 11
18 (AFFECTS THE SETTING OF A PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY)
Berewood Phase 9B West Of Marrelsmoor Avenue
Waterlooville Hampshire

Southwick And Widley. Wickham ward.

David Lee (Redrow) Chris Fletcher (Wow)
Mrs Jill Lee
20 November 2017

County Heritage Site

CIL Zones for Winchester City Council
Local Plan Policy Site

Portsmouth Water Operational Area
Solent Disturbance and Mitigation Zone
Application Permitted

}~_ ==

Phuse ‘}B~

f

Phuse 1 OA:'

Page 9



General Comments.

This application is reported to Committee as it is for major development within the West of
Waterlooville Major Development Area (MDA).

The application site is within the administrative area of Winchester.

The originally submitted plans have been amended to take on board some of the
comments made by consultees and officers.

The main changes are as follows:

Removal of overly large block of flats

Relocation of affordable housing to an area with improved aspects and amenity value
Balconies added to block D.

The provision of three wheelchair accessible units.

Adjustment of private housing mix to 17 x 3 bed units and 28 x 4 bed units.

Materials change to meet Design Code requirement for high quality materials
Updates to highways plans, engineering plans and landscaping drawings to reflect minor
layout changes.

Phase 9b is within the Garden Suburb Identity Area and is the second reserved matters
application in this area with the first being phase 2. The phase is to be developed by
Redrow who also developed Phase 2.

Site Description

The application site forms part of the residential Phase 9 on the MDA and is approximately
2.3 hectares.

The site was previously used for arable farming and has no trees or landscape features
other than the hedgerow defining the western edge of the parcel separating it from Phase
9a. The land to the east of the site is reserved for expansion of Berewood Primary School.
Should Hampshire County Council deem the expansion to the school unnecessary then
the land will be available for development.

To the west will be Phase 9a residential which is under consideration (application
reference 18/01351/REM). To the south is Phase 10 residential part of which is Phase
10a, also currently under consideration (application reference 17/02956/REM).

To the north of the site will be the River Wallington Community Nature Reserve,
allotments, play areas and Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems (SuDs ponds etc)

Proposal
It is proposed to develop this part of Phase 9 for the erection of 75 dwellings to include;

Market housing (total 45).

29 x four bedroom houses
16 x three bedroom houses.

Affordable housing units (total 30).
Case No: 17/02957/REM

Page 10



5 x three bedroom houses
11 x two bedroom houses
6 x two bedroom flats

8 x one bedroom houses.

Relevant Planning History

10/02862/0UT — The outline consent for the Grainger part of the West of Waterlooville
Major Development Area, decision notice issued 30" March 2012 subject to a S106
agreement that covers financial contributions and works for various infrastructure matters;
the timing of the payments and works being tied to numbers of units completed over the
entire Grainger part of the MDA.

The approved outline permission was for the development of approximately 2550
dwellings including the construction of a new access from Ladybridge Roundabout, Milk
Lane and completion of Maurepas Way access, a local centre comprising retail,
community building, land for healthcare, land for elderly care, public house, land for 2
primary schools, land for a nursery, land for employment uses, associated amenity space
along with substantial green infrastructure, SUDS, land for allotments, main pumping
station, land for cemetery, restoration of River Wallington together with landscape
structure planting. The same permission also approved the detail for 194 dwellings on
Phase 1 which is now largely complete.

The context for this current application is provided by the documents that were included n
the application the primary ones being:

The Design and Access Statement

The Masterplan Design Document

The Planning Statement

The Environmental Statement and Appendices
The Sustainability and Energy Statements

The Masterplan Design Document included an lllustrative Masterplan and a number of
Parameter plans to set the context for the whole outline area.

The outline planning application was approved at committee on 21 March 2011.
Subsequent to the approval of the outline permission, both Authorities approved a Design
Code under APP/12/01297 for Havant and 10/02862/OUT for Winchester for Berewood,
in December 2012. The Code deals with the structure, use and form of development for a
number of identity areas which are the Market Town, Garden Suburb, The Hamlets,
Employment Hub and the Countryside and River Wallington Corridor. Phase 9B falls
within the Garden Suburb identity area. There are also Development Wide codes for the
whole of the Grainger area that address street hierarchy and design and utilities.

Grainger have recently undertaken a more detailed proving layout which has been
presented to the West of Waterlooville Forum. This demonstrated that some parcels of
land had more constraints than first anticipated whilst in other areas there was capacity to
site more dwellings. The result of the exercise was to show that after the inclusion of the
Private Rented Scheme (PRS) the site could provided 2650 dwellings. This is an increase
of 100, 74 of which have already been provided in the PRS phase leaving the remaining
increase of 26 to be added on the remaining phases. This is within the limit of the
Environmental Impact Assessment, further dwellings beyond this number would require

Case No: 17/02957/REM

Page 11



full planning permission.

Consultations
Engineers: Drainage: No objection to the application. The drainage details submitted are
acceptable and accord with the approved drainage strategy for the site.

Engineers: Highways: No objection to the application.

There are instances of triple parking which is not generally supported but because it has
been kept away from the main road it is not sufficient reason to refuse the application.
The layout has been amended to make the location of the road junctions acceptable to
Hampshire Highways who will be adopting them. A condition will be needed to ensure
that the parking is retained.

Communal cycle stores should have individual lockers or cages for improved security and
to encourage their use.

Head of Environmental Protection: No objection to the application. No conditions
required.

Head of Landscape Ecology: No objection to the application.
Conditions recommended ensuring adherence to The Biodiversity By Design Ecological
Appraisal Rev 3.0 of June 2018, CEMP and Lighting Plan.

Head of Landscape: No objection to the application and no conditions required.
The application documents have been amended to take into account feedback through
the application process.

Head of New Homes Delivery Team: No objection to the application.

Clause 8.25 of the S106 states that the Affordable Housing Units shall be provided in
clusters of no more than 10-15 units for houses and 10-20 units for flats within any
reserved matters area, unless otherwise agreed in writing and having regard to the
requirements of the design code.

There are to be three separate clusters of affordable homes within phase 9b. The largest
cluster provides 14 units within three separate blocks. These are separated by a parking
area, and are adjacent to open space and private housing. The clusters of affordable
houses are provided in groups of eight. The layout and location has been informed by
Grainger Trust’'s management requirements, along with ensuring that the overall layout
and design of this phase provides a sufficient overall mix of units on site, whilst adhering
to the aspirations of the approved Design Code and advice given by Officers regarding
design, housing mix and tenure type during the evolution of the design.

The S106 was concluded after the SPD was adopted and so should take precedence.

There are 6 x 2 bed flats in the NW corner plus 4 x 1bed houses and 4 x 1 bed houses =
14

A group of 8 x 2/ 3 bed houses in the centre

A group of 8 2 /3 bed houses to the east of the site

TOTAL =75 TOTAL AFFORDABLE HOUSING = 30

The proposed clustering is therefore acceptable.

The apartment block is located on a prominent corner position within the site, occupiers
Case No: 17/02957/REM

Page 12



of the apartment block will enjoy direct access to the northern open space, allotments,
play area and nature reserve. The bespoke design of the affordable housing and
apartments will contribute to a tenure blind development that provides a high quality living
environment for future occupants.

In direct response to Officers comments balconies have been provided for the 2 bedroom
apartments to provide areas of private amenity space. The 1 bedroom houses benefit
from areas of amenity space around the building, along with direct access to adjacent
open spaces and play areas. Policy DM17 (vi) of the Local Plan Part 2 requires
development to provide sufficient amenity space and recreational spaces for users. The
High Quality Places SPD provides further advice, stating that the amount of amenity
space which will be acceptable depends on the context of the site. Furthermore, it states
that where private amenity is limited due to context, balconies should be included
wherever possible in order to provide some outdoor space (paragraph 4.62 refers). The
context of the proposed development within Phase 9b is housing bounded by high quality
public open spaces with direct access to grassed areas, open and usable amenity space
and nature conservation areas a short walk to the north. The majority of future occupiers
of Phase 9b will have direct access to private amenity space and all will have access to
the wider landscaped areas within the residential parcel of 9b and directly beyond within
the Berewood development.

It is positive that access is provided to outdoor private amenity space for the 2 bed flats
and that there is access to high quality grassed areas (adjacent to the SUDS); an area of
play and the wider nature conservation network with its various trails. As well as the road
network there is a footpath link for the entire phase to the open space, LEAP and the
various trails as well as a pavement / road link. These 2 links will also provide a link to
local shops and facilities. Furthermore informal interaction will occur between residents
on the phase as the clusters are positioned such that either the affordable and open
market properties are adjacent or there is access for all residents to the footway links and
of course all residents will be able to utilise the facilities that are provided. Usually the
positioning of the affordable housing in a corner of a development would not be readily
accepted; however in this case because of the footpath provision and the link to the local
facilities the location is acceptable.

The clusters are consistent with the S106, and whilst this differs from the aspirations set
out within the WCC affordable Housing SPD, it is the arrangement considered
appropriate by both Havant and Winchester Councils at the time of approving the outline
application. The clustering arrangements set out within the S106 were very much based
on the understanding that across the whole of the West of Waterlooville Major
Development area, 40% of the overall 2,550 units would be made available as Affordable
Housing. The design of each phase allows the opportunity to ensure that the units are
located appropriately across the site to integrate with all private housing and the social
and green infrastructure being provided as part of the wider development. The end result
will be a pepper potting of affordable homes throughout the major development area,
which allows the larger cluster sizes set out in the S106 to be met within each phase.
The apartment block is being offered as affordable rent whereas shared ownership would
have been preferred. The reason that the tenure cannot be changed is that the two
wheelchair accessible units are being provided within the block. The wheelchair
accessible units are needed to be provided as affordable rent and the Registered
Provider will not accept a split tenure block.

The affordable homes within Phase 9b are spread throughout the phase and located in
attractive positions. There is a mix of shared ownership and rented accommodation which

Case No: 17/02957/REM
Page 13



accords with the S106 requirements and local need.

Head of Urban Design: No objection to the application.

Original application included large block of flats adjacent to the main road which was
unacceptable. The position and bulk of this block has been amended and now overlooks
the River Wallington Nature Reserve, allotments and play areas. The houses adjacent to
the block have been handed to help improve the proportion in the street scene.

Environment Agency: No objection to the application and no conditions required.

Hampshire County Council Flood Authority: No objection to the application and no
conditions required.

Representations:

Havant Borough Council: No objection to the application. Havant officers have been
informed of changes to the application and support the amendments sought by Winchester
City Council.

Southwick and Widley Parish Council:
e No comments to make on the application.

1 letter received objecting to the application for the following reasons:
¢ Routing for construction vehicles will create dust and other inconvenience that
cannot be sufficiently mitigated through the Construction and Environment
Management Plan (CEMP).

1 letter of support received.
e Support the development generally provided the impacts of construction are
mitigated and reduced as far as possible.
1 letter of comment received.
¢ Request the use of materials to enhance ecology such as the use of Swift bricks.

Relevant Planning Policy:

Winchester Local Plan Part 1 — Joint Core Strategy
SH2 — Strategic Housing Allocation — West of Waterlooville.

Winchester Local Plan Part 2 — Development Management and Site Allocations.
As this is a reserved matters application it does not require assessment against these
policies which were adopted after the outline consent had been granted.

National Planning Policy Guidance/Statements:
National Planning Policy Framework

Planning Considerations

Principle of development
The principle of the development of this area for housing has been established by the
outline planning permission 10/02862/OUT. This application is submitted as a reserved

Case No: 17/02957/REM

Page 14



matters application and is bound by the original S106 agreement and conditions on the
outline consent some of which are applied for as part of this application and others
remain to be discharged. The application is also required to be in accordance with the
approved Design and Access Statement, The Masterplan Design Document, The
Planning Statement, The Environmental Statement and Appendices and the
Sustainability and Energy Statements.

The applicant has submitted a statement of conformity with the application which
indicates that the proposed development is largely in accordance with the approved suite
of documents and parameter plans which cover building heights, density, movement
strategies, land uses, biodiversity, play, tree strategy, open space, landscaping including
community gardens, SUDS, lighting and phasing.

The application also includes the approval of conditions 3 (accordance with approved
documents), 6 (ii)a (layout), b (levels), d (Suds), f (ecology), h (means of enclosure), i
(hard surfacing), j (parking, loading and turning), k (refuse), | (street lighting), m (external
lighting), n (chimneys, flues and vents), 11 (CEMP) and 18 (surface water).

The approved Design Codes provide more detailed guidance on the Identity Areas
including character, house types, materials and boundary treatments. Phase 9b is within
the Garden Suburb Identity Area and is being developed by Redrow who also built Phase
2 which is in the same Identity Area. The Garden Suburb identity area is influenced by
the existing and new landscape characteristics of the area with a strong green framework
and medium density development. It respects the existing hedgerow network and
woodland. The development should be primarily family housing. The material palette is
similar to that used on Phase 2.

Parking for cars and cycles are provided to the standard and some of the parking will be
unallocated. There is also visitor car parking provided throughout the phase.

The proposed density for Phase 9b will be 34 dwellings per hectare which is within the
approved range for the Garden Suburb Identity Area of 29 — 36 dwellings per hectare

This reserved matters application is for part of the Phase 9 area and covers only the
serviced development plot. The wider landscaping and the main infrastructure has been
dealt with through other applications and conditions discharge.

Phase 9 was originally anticipated to accommodate 251 dwellings. The proving exercise
carried out by Grainger indicates that Phase 9 will be capable of accommodating an
additional 30 dwellings. The current application for Phase 9b is for 75 dwellings which is
in general accordance with the anticipated numbers on this part of Phase 9.

The principle of development is therefore acceptable and the application is recommended
for approval and the conditions for discharge. Some conditions are required on this
application and are set out at the end of the report.

Design/layout
The layout of Phase 9b has been designed around the existing infrastructure including
SuDS as well as the guidance in the design code and masterplan documents. This is
the general approach taken on the MDA. The layout and hierarchy of the roads is set
out in the design codes with the approximate position of the major roads indicated on
the approved parameter plans.

Within this part of the phase the layout of the development reflects that already
Case No: 17/02957/REM

Page 15



approved on phase 2 with dwellings fronting the roads with private rear gardens.

The design of the proposed dwellings is traditional and reflects the Arts and Crafts style
design of phase 2 which is now fully constructed and occupied. The materials are high
quality and include two bricks Leicester Autumn Multi and Dorset Multi Red Stock. They
are good quality bricks which have been used elsewhere on the MDA. The roof
materials will be natural slate or Fired Sienna or Dark Heather through coloured plain
clay tile. There will be some areas of render and timber cladding of porches which are
acceptable materials and which have been used elsewhere in the Garden Suburb
identity area.

The windows are proposed to be UPVC which does not comply with the design code
which prohibits the use of UPVC. However it has been agreed with Grainger that the
design code will be formally updated to allow for the use of UPVC as the product has
been very much improved in recent years and a sample has been submitted which has
been assessed by the Urban Designer who has confirmed that it is an acceptable
product and use of UPVC on the site will be limited to this particular product or
something of equal quality. This should help to ensure continuing quality over the site
whilst allowing the flexibility of using UPVC product for future phases. This deviation
from the design code is therefore considered to be acceptable.

All boundaries to public areas and car parking courts are to be brick walls in accordance
with the Design Code. Close boarded fences will only be used to divide garden areas
not in the public domain.

The building heights and density accord with the parameter plans in the approved
master plan document and are considered to be acceptable.

The layout creates a permeable phase of housing with direct access to the future River
Wallington Nature Reserve, allotments and play area to the north and the local centre
and school to the east.

The applicant has amended the plans to reflect urban design comments regarding the
layout and siting of the apartment block and some 1 bedroom houses have been
provided so that smaller blocks of 4 could be utilised rather than another apartment
block.

The design, layout and materials are acceptable for this phase of the Garden Suburb
development.

Impact on character of area and neighbouring property.

The proposed development is in accordance with the approved master plan and suite of
documents submitted with the outline planning permission. These were designed to
ensure that the future development phases would fit together in the overall development
without adverse impacts on adjoining phases or land uses.

The closest neighbour to the site is Berewood Primary School. Phase 9b abuts the area
of land to the west of the school which is being protected to allow for future expansion of
the school. There are no residential neighbours at the present time but the layout of
Phase 9b has been arranged so that rear gardens back onto the school land and there is
sufficient space between 9b and 9a that future relationships between dwellings will not be
an issue. There is also a substantial hedge dividing these two phases. There are not
considered to be any adverse neighbour impacts caused by the proposed development.

Case No: 17/02957/REM
Page 16



In terms of impacts on the character of the area, the site has been identified as a
development site with the illustrative phasing plans submitted with the outline application
envisaging approximately 251 dwellings over the whole phase. As with other phases on
the MDA it has been decided to deal with phase 9 in three different phases. Phase 10
has also been split with the northern parcel identified as Phase 10a The Masterplan and
Design Codes ensure that the phases of the MDA fit together and do not have adverse
impacts on each other. The application for the adjacent phases, 9a to the west and 10a to
the south have been submitted so that the proposed detailed layouts are known and are
acceptable. The significant hedge to the western boundary of Phase 9a is being retained,
reinforced and protected with estate railings which will ensure the landscape character is
maintained.

Phase 9b has no adverse impacts on the character of the area or neighbouring property.

Hard and soft landscaping and trees.
The only existing landscape feature on site is the hedge to the western boundary which
incorporates some hedgerow trees all of which are to be retained and reinforced with
additional planting where needed. The site benefits from being located within a well
landscaped area with the River Wallington Nature Reserve, play area and allotments to
the north with residents having easy level access to this area. There is no public
amenity space on this part of Phase 9 as there is good access to a significant area of
amenity space to the north although this is outside of this application red line. The
planting within the phase is similar to that in Phase 2 with planting to front gardens and
tree planting within the street. The retained hedgerow and hedgerow trees are the most
significant landscape features within this phase and will provide a buffer between 9b
and 9a. The hedgerow will be reinforced where needed and access through it will be
prevented by the erection of estate (metal) railings. There will be a pathway running
along side the hedge to give access in to the River Wallington Nature Reserve,
allotments and play area to the northern boundary of the site.
The hard landscaping within the phase follows the general pattern found over the MDA.
The main roads will be tarmac as will pavements where they are provided. The private
driveways will be topped with Tegula paving. The minor roads which are shared surface
will also be finished in Tegula block paving. This has been found to be successful in
other shared surface areas within the MDA and is acceptable in Phase 9b. The new
pedestrian link which runs along the hedgerow to the open space beyond will be
finished in self binding gravel.

Highways/Parking and refuse.
The application is supported by a parking strategy plan and a bin and cycle plan.
The main access to the site is already approved under an infrastructure discharge of
condition application. The hierarchy of roads within the site follows the Design Code
policies and include shared surfaces. The road layout allows a link to the reserved
school site to the east of 9b.
The houses all have allocated parking spaces within the curtilage. Integral and
detached garages are proposed and they are large enough to accommodate car and
cycle parking. The affordable houses all have secure sheds provided in the rear
gardens. The apartment block which contains 2no two bedroom wheelchair accessible
units and 4no two bedroom flats is provided with unallocated parking to include 2no
disabled spaces. The 2 adjacent blocks C contain 8 one bedroom houses. They also
have unallocated car parking in the same courtyard as the apartment block with a total
of 17 unallocated spaces being provided. 1 additional unallocated space is provided
adjacent to plot 53. The parking within the courtyard is overlooked by the frontages of

Case No: 17/02957/REM

Page 17



the 2 Block C and Block D which has two fronts.

There are instances of triple car parking which is generally not encouraged by highways
as it can be inconvenient and lead to parking on the highway. On this phase the
instances of triple parking are away from the main road and are an unintended
consequence of having garages set back behind the house frontages which is
something that is required in the Design Code.

The level of car and cycle provision is acceptable.

The arrangements for refuse disposal are shown on the bin and cycle plan. Every house
has an area of hardstanding for bin storage and the 1 bedroom houses and apartment
block have communal bins. There are no bin collection points provided in this phase.
The tracking diagrams submitted with the application show that the refuse lorry can
access the bins without the need for them to be brought to a bin collection area.

The highways, parking and refuse provision for the phase are considered to be
acceptable.

Affordable Housing.

The proposal is for 75 dwellings 30 of which are affordable homes which equates to the
40% affordable housing required in the S106. The number of affordable dwellings provided
is therefore acceptable. The tenure of the 30 dwellings will be split 50/50 affordable rent
and intermediate rent. This split is compliant with the S106 and is acceptable. The
affordable units will include 5 three bedroom 5 person houses, 11 two bedroom 4 person
houses, 6 two bedroom 3 person flats and 8 one bedroom 2 person houses. Four
bedroom houses are not required on this phase due to their lack of affordability. It would
have been preferred if the 4 two bedroom flats in the apartment block could have been
shared ownership but because the 2 wheelchair accessible units within the same block are
required to be rented it is not possible to achieve this as the registered provider will not
accept a mixed tenure block. The sizes of the houses and flats have been revised and are
now in compliance with the Nationally Described Space Standards which is again
compliant with the requirements of the S106.

The affordable houses are spread across the entire phase with the apartment block now
being located to the north west corner of the site which was something negotiated by the
Council’'s urban designer who had objected to the previous location of the block in the
south west corner adjacent to the main road. The apartment block has direct access to the
open space to the north of the site which will include an equipped play area. The houses
have their own private gardens and the one bedroom houses have close access to open
space but no private gardens of their own.

The materials to be used for the affordable dwellings are the same as the market
dwellings. There are no private apartments proposed so the apartment block will appear
different to the detached houses. The apartment block has been designed with two fronts
so that it overlooks the open space and also has a front to the parking court. Larger blocks
are acceptable in the Garden Suburb Identity Area and Block A is similar in scale and
design to the blocks provided in Phase 2.

The number, position and tenure of the proposed affordable homes is in compliance with
the S106 requirements and are supported.

Sustainability.
The application is in accordance with the approved Sustainability and Energy Statements.
The proposal has been designed to reduce energy demand from non renewable or high

Case No: 17/02957/REM

Page 18



carbon energy sources. The fabric of the dwellings have enhanced insulation and
increased air tightness which will in turn reduce the demand for energy. Water use is
minimised through efficient fixtures and fittings and capturing rainwater for external
irrigation. Waste during construction will be minimised with materials being responsibly
sourced. Emissions measures will be taken to encourage a reduction in CO2 emissions
when the dwellings are occupied by providing information to occupants on energy efficient
appliances, providing natural clothes drying facilities, providing cycle storage and
encouraging home working by providing appropriate service provisions. The dwellings will
meet code level 4 which is required by building regulations. The application has to be
assessed against the approved suite of documents rather than the targets set in the
Winchester District Local Plan Part 2 but the applicants have addressed improving
sustainability in their dwellings and this is considered to be acceptable.

Planning Obligations/Agreements
There are no legal agreements required for this application because it is a reserved matters
application which is subject to the S106 on the hybrid application.

Recommendation
Application Permitted subject to the following conditions:

Conditions

01 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
list of approved plans and documents;

Completed application form and Certificate A
Design and Access Statement

Design and Access Statement Addendum

Cover Letter dated 3rd August 2018

Detailed planting plans 2759-9B-PP-01-P3 1 of 2
Detailed planting plans 2759-9B-PP-02-P3 2 of 2
lllustrative Landscape Masterplan 2759-LA-01
Planning Statement Addendum

The Ecology Statement- Biodiversity By Design
CEMP

Design Code Compliance Checklist 9B 020818
Site location plan CB_20_106_9B 200

Planning layout CB_20_106_9B 201 Rev Q

Land use plan CB_20_106_9B 202 Rev N
Housing mix plan CB_20_106_9B 203 Rev N
Housing tenure plan CB_20 _106_9B 204 Rev Q
Building heights plan CB_20_106_9B 205 Rev N
Parking strategy plan CB_20_106_9B 206 Rev N
Bin and cycle storage plan CB_20 106_9B 207 Rev N
External finishes plan CB_20 106 _9B 208 Rev U
External enclosure plan CB_20 106_9B 209 Rev N

Harrogate elevations CB_20_106_9B HA EO1 Rev B
Harrogate floor plans CB_20 106 9B HA P01 Rev B
Shaftesbury elevations CB_20 106 _9B SH E01_Rev C

Case No: 17/02957/REM
Page 19



Shaftesbury floor plans CB_20 106 9B SH P01 _Rev C
Cambridge elevations CB_20_106_9B_CA_EO1_Rev B
Cambridge floor plans CB_20 106 _9B_CA P01_Rev B

Oxford elevations CB_20_106_9B_OX EO01_Rev A

Oxford floor plans CB_20_106_9B_OX P01_Rev A

Grantham elevations CB_20_106_9B_GR_E01_Rev C

Grantham elevations Rev A

Grantham floor plans CB_20_106_9B_GR_P01_Rev C

Stratford elevations CB_20_106_9B_ST_EO01_RevD

Stratford floor plans CB_20 _106_9B_ST_PO01_Rev D

Oxford lifestyle elevations CB_20_106_9B _OXL_EO1_Rev A
Oxford lifestyle floor plans CB_20 _106_9B_OXL_EO01_Rev A
Amberley elevations CB_20 106 _9B_AM_EO1_Rev A

Amberley elevations CB_20_106_9B_AM_EO02_Rev A

Amberley floor plans CB_20_106_9B_AM_P01_Rev B

Warwick elevations CB_20 106 9B WA EO1 _Rev D

Warwick floor plans CB_20_106_9B_WA P01 Rev D

Ludlow elevations CB_20 106 9B LU EO1 Rev C

Ludlow floor plans CB_20 106 9B LU EO1 Rev C

Dart elevations CB_20 106 9B DA _EO1 Rev D

Dart floor plans CB_20 106_9B DA P01 Rev D

Tavy elevations CB_20 106 9B TA EO1 Rev D

Tavy floor plans CB_20_106_9B_TA P01 Rev D

Tavy elevations CB_20 106 9B TA EO02 Rev D

Tavy floor plans CB_20_106_9B TA P02 Rev D

Garage floor plans and elevations CB_20 _106_9B _GAR_02 Rev E
Garage floor plans and elevations CB_20_106_9B_GAR_03 Rev A
Garage floor plans and elevations CB_20 106_9B_GAR_04 Rev A
Bin store floor plan and elevations CB_20 106 _9B BIN 01 Rev C
Bin store and cycle store floor plan and elevations CB_20 106 _9B BIN_03
Bin and cycle store floor plan and elevations CB_20_106_9B BIN_04
Cycle store floor plan and elevations CB_20 106 9B _CYC_01 Rev A
1BH Elevations (Block C) CB_20 106 9B _1BH_Rev EO1 Rev F
1BH Floor plans (Block C) CB_20 106 _9B 1BH_ P01 Rev F

Block D Flat elevations CB_20 106 9B D EO1

Block D Flat elevations CB_20 106 9B D _EO02

Block D Flat floor plans CB_20_106_9B _D_PO01

Block D Flats floor plans CB_20 106 9B D P02

Block D Flats floor plans CB_20 106 9B D P03

3BW Elevations CB_20_106_9B_3BW_EO01

3BW Floor plans CB_20 106_9B_3BW_P01

Meter Box Location Plan CB_20 106 _9b 210 Rev D

CB_20 _106_MB_TA (Tavy) Rev A

CB_20_106_MB_SY (Shaftesbury) Rev A

CB_20 _106_MB_ST (Stratford) Rev A

CB_20_106_MB_OXLS (Oxford lifestyle) Rev A
CB_20_106_MB_OX (Oxford) Rev A

CB_20_106_MB_LU (Ludlow) Rev A

CB_20_106_MB_HA (HARROGATE) Rev A

CB_20 106_MB_GR (Grantham) Rev A

CB_20_106_MB_DA (Dart) Rev A

Case No: 17/02957/REM
Page 20



CB_20 _106_MB_CA (Cambridge) Rev A

CB_20_106_MB_AM (Amberley) Rev A

CB_20_106_MB_WA (Warwick) Rev A

CB_20_106_MB_3BW Rev A

CB_20_106_MB_1BH (Block C) (Bromsgrove) Rev A

Street Scenes CB_20 _106_9B_SS 01 Rev F

Street Scenes CB_20 106 9B SS 02 Rev K

Street Scenes CB_20 106 9B SS 03 Rev G

Street Scenes CB_20 106 9B SS 04 Rev G

Mayer Brown Technical Drawings:

Extent Of Adoptable RHWVILLEP9_LG/01 Highway Rev E

General Arrangement RHWVILLEP9_GA/01 Rev F

Foul & Surface Water Drainage Layout RHWVILLEP9 DR/01 Rev E
Surface Water Drainage Longitudinal Sections RHWVILLEP9_DR/10Rev B
Foul Water Drainage Longitudinal Sections RHWVILLEP9 _DR/15 Rev B
Engineering Layout RHWVILLEP9_EL/01 Rev E

Road Names & Chainages RHWVILLEP9 RD/01 Rev E

Street Lighting Layout RHWVILLEP9_RD/20 Rev F

Extent Of Pervious Paving RHWVILLEP9_RD/30 Rev E

Longitudinal Sections - Sheet 1 of 3 RHWVILLEP9_RD/50 Rev B
Longitudinal Sections - Sheet 2 of 3 RHWVILLEP9 _RD/51 Rev B
Longitudinal Sections - Sheet 3 of 3 RHWVILLEP9 RD/52 Rev C

Cross Sections - Sheet 1 of 4 RHWVILLEP9 RD/60 Rev B

Cross Sections - Sheet 2 of 4 RHWVILLEP9 RD/61 Rev B

Cross Sections - Sheet 3 of 4 RHWVILLEP9 RD/62 Rev B

Cross Sections - Sheet 4 of 4 RHWVILLEP9 RD/63 Rev B

Large Refuse Vehicle Tracking Diagrams - Sheet 1 of 2 RHWVILLEP9_VT/01 Rev C
Large Refuse Vehicle Tracking Diagrams - Sheet 2 of 2 RHWVILLEP9 VT/02 Rev C
Shared vehicle areas & private drives RHWVILLEP9_CD-701 PT3

01 Reason: In the interests of clarity and to ensure that the development is undertaken in a
satisfactory manner.

02 The unallocated and visitor parking spaces shown on drawing number
RWBWOODP9B/GA/01 rev F by Mayer Brown shall be retained and made available for
parking purposes at all times to all residents and visitors to the development with no
physical or legal restriction on who may use such spaces.

02 Reason: To ensure that adequate parking spaces are retained for the development (in
accordance with Winchester City Council's Supplementary Planning Document Residential
Parking Standards December 2009) in the interests of highway safety.

03 The parking areas including the garages shall be provided in accordance with the
approved plans before the dwellings are first occupied and thereafter permanently retained
and used only for the purpose of accommodating private motor vehicles or other storage
purposes incidental to the use of the dwelling houses as a residences.

03 Reason: To ensure that adequate parking spaces are retained for the development (in

accordance with Winchester City Council's Supplementary Planning Document Residential
Parking Standards December 2009) in the interests of highway safety.

Case No: 17/02957/REM
Page 21



04 Prior to the operation of any street lights on site, details of ecological mitigation and in
particular the need for lighting cowls shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved details.

04 Reason: To ensure that the lights are not detrimental to the ecological interest on the
site.

05 Prior to any work commencing on site, details of a scheme for protecting the proposed
dwelling from external noise shall be submitted, and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. Such a scheme shall ensure that, upon completion of the development,
the following noise criteria (as recommended in BS8233:2014) shall be met:

i. all bedrooms shall achieve an 8-hour LAeq (23:00 to 07:00) of 30dB(A)

ii. all living rooms and bedrooms shall achieve a 16-hour LAeq (07:00 to 23:00) of

35dB(A)

iil. all private amenity spaces shall achieve a 16-hour LAeq (07:00 to 23:00) of 55dB(A)

05 Reason: To ensure that acceptable noise levels within the dwellings and the curtilages
of the dwellings are not exceeded.

06 A noise validation report, demonstrating compliance with these noise criteria, shall be
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority before any dwelling is
occupied. This assessment shall be conducted with windows open for ventilation, unless
mechanical ventilation has been provided, in which case these tests shall be performed
with such mechanical ventilation running. Such noise protection measures shall thereafter
be maintained and operated in accordance with the approved scheme.

06 Reason: To ensure that acceptable noise levels within the dwellings and the curtilages
of the dwellings are not exceeded.

07 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re enacting that order with
or without modification) no development permitted by Part 1 of Class A of Schedule 2 in
respect of plots 60, 65, 66, 90, 92, 103, 104, 109, 110 and 118 (as shown on approved
plan Planning Layout CB_20 106_9B_ 201 Rev P) shall be carried out without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

07 Reason: To protect the amenities of the locality and to maintain a good quality
environment because these plots are in prominent positions in the street scene or adjacent
to the areas of publically accessible open space.

08 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re enacting that order with
or without modification) no development permitted by Part 2 minor operations Class A of
Schedule 2 shall be carried out without the prior written consent of the Local Planning
Authority.

08 Reason: To protect the amenities of the locality and to maintain a good quality
environment.

Informatives:
Case No: 17/02957/REM

Page 22



In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the NPPF Winchester City Council (WCC)
take a positive and proactive approach to development proposals focused on solutions.
WCC work with applicants/agents in a positive and proactive manner by;

- offering a pre-application advice service and,

- updating applicants/agents of any issues that may arise in the processing of their
application and where possible suggesting solutions.

In this instance the applicant was updated of any issues after the initial site visit.

02. This permission is granted for the following reasons:

The development is in accordance with the Policies and Proposals of the Development
Plan set out below, and other material considerations do not have sufficient weight to
justify a refusal of the application. In accordance with Section 38(6) of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, planning permission should therefore be granted.

03. The Local Planning Authority has taken account of the following development plan
policies and proposals:-

Winchester District Local Plan Part 1 — Joint Core Strateqgy:
SH2 — Strategic Housing Allocation — West of Waterlooville.

Winchester Local Plan Part 2 — Development Management and Site Allocations.
As this is a reserved matters application it does not require assessment against these
policies which were adopted after the outline consent had been granted.

04.  All building works including demolition, construction and machinery or plant
operation should only be carried out between the hours of 0800 and 1800 hrs Monday to
Friday and 0800 and 1300 hrs Saturday and at no time on Sundays or recognised public
holidays. Where allegations of noise from such works are substantiated by the
Environmental Protection Team, a Notice limiting the hours of operation under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974 may be served.

05. During Construction, no materials should be burnt on site. Where allegations of
statutory nuisance are substantiated by the Environmental Protection Team, an Abatement
Notice may be served under The Environmental Protection Act 1990. The applicant is
reminded that the emission of dark smoke through the burning of materials is a direct
offence under The Clean Air Act 1993.

Case No: 17/02957/REM
Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	5 17/02957/REM - Berewood Phase 9B, West Of Marrelsmoor Avenue, Waterlooville, Hampshire

